
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ^
Office of Strategic lNiTiAj5j^^^,2i ftMlo=ll f?run

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301-3834

Telephone: (603) 271-2155CHRISTOPHER T.SuNtnru Fax: (603) 271-2615 Division OF Energy
Governor www.nh.gov/osi

May 3, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

RFOIJKSTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to amend the SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement (Contract
#1077843) with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (VC #177203), Concord, NH, by
increasing the contract amount by $115,000.00 from $89,553.00 to $204,553.00 to supplement the Agency's
Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) effective upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through
December 31, 2021. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on 12/16/2020, item #28.
100% Federal Funds. (LIHEAP-US DHHS)

Funding is available in the following account:

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance

01 -02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $'' 5,000.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance Program
due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP, and their
historical performance delivering the weatherization program.

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP).
The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the impact of energy costs in low-income
households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with children, and households with high-energy
usage. The funding in this contract will supplement WAP work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding will allow the Community
Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of homes receiving heating system
improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year. OSI estimates that approximately
seventeen (17) additional homes will be assisted in the CAA's service area as a result of the additional funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this contract.

Respectfully submitted,

o ̂
Jared Chicoine

Director

;■ ' G&C 05/19/21

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

SUBJECT: BUILDING WEATHERIZATIGN PROGRAM PY2i CONTRACT WITH
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated April 14, 2021, is.betwcen the State of New Hampshire, Office of Strategic
Initiatives, 107 Pleasant Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as "OSI")
and Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., 2 Industrial Drive, PO Box 1016,
Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03302 (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), Contract Number 1077843, as
approved by Governor and Council on December 16, 2020 (Item #28), the Contractor has agreed to
provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement in consideration of
payment.by OSI of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be modified
or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval of such
modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in the
Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and.ModificatioD of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows:

A) Pnce Ei'mitatidh: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the
current sum of $89,553.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$204,553.00 wherever it occurs.

B) :ExhibitvG'T-."Pavmerit-:T^^ Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the
current sum of $89,553.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$204,553.00.

Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the current sum of $4,478.00 and
inserting $10,228.00 for administrative costs.

Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the current sum of $85,075.00 and
inserting $194,325.00 for program costs.

2. Cbnfihunhcc of 'AOTCcnicht! Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms and
Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full force
and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it existed
immediately prior to this Amendment.

BMCAP BV/P21 Amcndmcni Contractor Imtials:
Gram: G-2101NHLIEA Date:
CFDA: 93.568 " of 2



CONTRACT AMENDMENT OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Office of Strategic Initiatives

By:
JarecjjIIhicoine, Director

CoBimunity Action Prpgr^ B^lknap-ij4erTimack Counties, Inc.

State of New Hampshire
County of MerrimaCk

Je

yuaj
e;Agri, Chief Executive Qmcer

On this 151!; day of April. 2021. before me, Kathv L. Howard , the undersigned officer, personally
appeared Jeanne Agri. who acknowledged herself to be the Chief Executive Officer of gommunity
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. a corporation, and that she being authorized so to
do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

'tSZA

Notary j'libiic/Justrce of the Peace
My Commission expires:

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE Of THE AJTO^EY GENERAL

B^
Assistant Attorney General

Date:

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on __,2021.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Tide:

BMCAP B\VP21 Amendment

Grant: G-2101NHLIEA
CFDA: 93.568

Gontradbr IniUals: \
iT \ 5 ■ a-d3.\.
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERJUMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28. 1965.1 further certify that al! fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0005338239

Ojt

y
tSm

o
to

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,.

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Phone (603) 225-3295
(800) 856-5525
Fax (603) 228-1898
Web www.bm-cap.org

O

o
o

BELKNAP-MERR.IMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EUPOWeRINQ COMUUNITIEI SINCE ISOS

2 Induslriol Pork Drive j
P.O. Box 1016 I
Concord, NH

03302-1016

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. iPeririis Martihb: President.. Bb1ard-6f Dirgctoi^. hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of Community Actibn'ProQram &e^^knat^Merrimack Couj^^ Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on January 14, 2021, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agti, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,

Chief Operations Officer/Deputy Director, Rossana Goding, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoife, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of Gbhrimuhttv AGtiortPfbgrarh Belkhab-Menlma'ckCbuh^ enter into contracts

or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and ail documents, agreements and other Instruments, and

any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.

Such authority to be in force and effect until. DecemtferSI. 2021. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 4/15/2021
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dennis Martino

Title: President. Board of Directors

Rev. 11/12/2020
ldh:COA - dtnnU martino
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AC:C>RC> CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
CMTC (UMSD/rYYV)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOIW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.,, .

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(lei) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, sublect to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an andorsemont A statement on i
this certificate does not conforrights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs). !

PRODUCER

FlAl/Crots Inturance

HOC Elm Street

Mancheiter NH 03101

Andrea" Nicklin i

Spfe-PWY. (603)«e»-32ie - (803)645-1331.
SnBPM•• aNcWinOcrossagency-com

W80RER(8IAFF0R0«0 COVERAGE NAICf . .1

mnmrRA; Tokk)MarinaHoWlnga.Inc. >

MSURED

Community /Action Program Belknap-Morrfma6( Countlei Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

Concord NH. 03302 .

prsuRime" Granite State,Haatth Care and Human.Sarwtee* Self-
'insurer C: Federal Ins Co . .. . 20261

INSURER 0! ,, , , . _ - - . .
1

:iNSUR£RE: .  '

INSU^F.; 1

TWIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND C0NDITlONS_0F SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVVN MAY HAVE BgN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. _

l

LTO -.TYP6 OF MSUflANCE - iGfTTIivnl .POLICY NUMBER

X COMMERCLAL OENERAL UABIUTY

CLUMBJAAOE I X OCCUR
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X POLICY [ZD'-OC
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PHPK2187440
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<MWA30WYYYI
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>6UdV&u>
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.10/01/2021
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TIUUeETORERTEB
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UED EXP (Any W p««o«>l

PERSONAL t AOV INJURY

GENERAL ACOREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPlOP AGO

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,CK>0,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOGLE LIAOIUTY

ANY AUTOX

COMSWEO SiNClE UMIT^ « 1,000,000

X
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EXCESS UAO

DEO
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PROPeRTY OAMAO^
■(Per ttidann'-' "

X :occuR j
CLAMS4AAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000,000

PHUB740340 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 AGCRECATE
IS.OOO.OOO

X -R^mw j'
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERr UABILITY
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-SWUTE.

^STiT
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E.L DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE
1,000.000

Ifaai, dafotM unMr
DESCSCRIPTION OF OPERATTOHS Iwtew EL DISEASE • POUCY LIMIT

, 1,000,000

Directors & Officers Liability
82471794 04/01/2021 04/01/2022

Limit

Deductible

$1,000,000

$5,000

DESCRIPTION Of OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Addltlenal RmmcAs S«li«4t4a, may

(Job f; Job Type: Strategic Initlativas (OSI)]
Confirmation of Coverage:.

ba atbahad IT mofa apaea la raquirad)

CANCELLATION

Ofnce of Strategic Inliiatlvas (OSI)

1
,  SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
t  THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WtLL BE DELIVERED IN
;  ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVlSfONS.
1

107 Pleasant Street

Johnson Hall, 3rd Floor

Concord

1  • •

NH 03301 1

(AUTHORIieOREPReSeNIATiyE .. "

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Christopher T. Sununu

Governor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

Concord, NH 03301-3834

Telephone: (603) 271-2155
Fax: (603) 271-2615

Division of Planning

Division of Energy

wwW.nh.gov/osi

November 30, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stale Houm

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

APPROVED BY GOVERNOR

& COUNCIL ON; 12/16/2020
AGENDA ITEM: #28

P0#1077843

REOUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with Community
Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc. (VC #177203), Concord, NH, in the amount of $89,553.00 to
supplement the Agency's Wcatherization Assistance Program (WAP), effective January 1, 2021, through
December 31, 2021, upon approval of Governor and E.xccutivc Council. 100% Federal Funds. (LIHEAP-US
DHHS)

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the operating budget, as follows:

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Fuel Assistance

01 -02-02-024010-77050000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

FY2021

$89,553.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Wcatherization Assistance Program
due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP, and their
historical performance delivering the wcatherization program.

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Wcatherization Assistance Program (WAP).
The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the Impact of energy costs in low-income
households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with children, and households with high-energy
usage. The funding in this contract will supplement WAP work. ,

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract will allow the
Community Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of homes receiving heating
system improvements and/or full wcatherization services in the program year which begins on January 1,2021.
OSI estimates that approximately fourteen (14) additional homes will be assisted in the CAA's service area as a
result of the supplemental funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this contract.

lespcctfuHyvsubmitled,

ared Chicoine

irccior

C&C, 12/16/2020

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreeoient and'aJI of its actachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Cbuhci! for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract;

AGREEMENT

Hw State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISfONS

1.1 State Agency Name
Office of Strategic Initiatives

12 State Agency Address
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall

Concord, New Hampshire 03301'

1.3 Contractor Name

Community" Action Prograrn Delknap-Meriimack Counties. Inc.,
1.4 Contractor Address

Pp.Box 10)6, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)225-3295

1.6- Account Number

•01-02-02-024010-77650600-
500587 02BV^T21

' 1.7 Completion Date
December 31, 2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$89,553.00

1.9 'Contfaciing'OfDcer for State'Agency
; Kirk Stone, Wcatherization Program-Manager

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-2155

1.11 Gpnt^ior Slgriatiu^

/  ll/ig/2020

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Michael Tabory, Deputy Director

1.13 State^^cncy Signature " ' 1.14 Name and TitlcbfState^Agcncy Signatory

(JUlGlihP.
iyi5 Approval by-the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Pcnsonrfel (if ^ '

y  By: Director,,On:.

1,16 •.Appro,val by the Attorney Genei^ (Form, Substance and Excctitidn) (ifapplicable)

1.17 ''Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&c;iicmDum^r G&CMectingpaic: DEC 1 8 MM'

Page I of 4
Conti^cior Initials . ^

Date f



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("Slate"), engages contmclor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, If applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercunder, shall
become effective on the dale the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the SiBlc Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agrccmenl'does not become
effective, the Stole shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor musi complctc all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
without Hmiuiion, the continuance of payments hcreundcr, are
contingent upon the availability and conunucd appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided ir» EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
port. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are idcnlificd and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stale of tlie contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision oflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, io no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duly upon the
Contractor, Including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United Slates, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of (his Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to pemiit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, icnns and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
ai! personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under ail applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized In writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, end
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or ofTicial, who is materially involved In the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's rcprcscntaiive. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials ̂

Date



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of ihc following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hercunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule; ^

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event ofDcfault is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, efTcctive two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such tinte as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Slate to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event ofDcfault shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of (he Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Stale may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of tlie Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing In
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the onached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, ai the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services urtder the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during (he
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to (he State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality, of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of dau requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of (his Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor en
employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any bencnts, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (IS) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or ;dmissio^of the
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Contracior, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. ■ The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. NotwithsUnding the foregoing, nothingherein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

M.I The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee 10 obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire bythc N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Slate ofNcw Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfHcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrxificatc(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and ere incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connccUon with
activities which (he person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof^ which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable Slate of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the lime
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only af^er approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
(he Slate of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Slate law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance wich the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of (he parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment (hereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefiL

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Apecmem are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthecvcnt any of the provisions ofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
(Contractor thilfais

■Dale-A



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200, as amended, GJniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February I. 2002(Weathcrizalion Assistance
Program), the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, NHWAP
Policies and Procedures Manual (P&PM), and NHWAP Field Guide are all considered part of this
contract by inclusion and shall be legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract.
The Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) reserves the right to use any legal remedy at its disposal
including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension of agency
personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment of agencies and/or subcontractors from
present or future contracts, and such other legal remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New
Hampshire Department of Justice in the enforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the
Weatherization Program.

2. An audit shall be made at iJic'cnd of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200,
Subpart F - Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and
expenditures by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The
Contractor shall utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least
every four years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of the prior year's questioned costs along with a response
regarding the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management Idlers
written as a result of the audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to OSI within one month
of the time of receipt by the Contractor accompanied by an action, if applicable, for each finding or
questioned cost.

3. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions;

"9.3 All negotiated contracts (except those of $5,000 or less) awarded by OSi to the Contractor shall
allow OSI, DOE, Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General of Ihe United States, or any
duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Subgranlce or their subcontractors, which arc direcUy pertinent lo this contract for the purpose of
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions."

4. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E • Cost Principals.

5. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by OSI and the Contractor
for 3 (three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for awards that arc
renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual financial
report, as stated in 2 CFR 200.333 - Retention Requirements for Records.

6. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall
be submitted to the State within forty-five (45) days of the cornpletion date (Agreement
Block 1.7).

Exhibit A
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7. The following paragraphs shall be added to tlic general provisions:;

"25. RESTRJCTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between the parties
that no portion of the "Grant" fiinds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional federal ftinds
under any other law of the United Slates, except if authorized under that law."

"26. ASSURANCES/CERTff ICATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Certification
Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification
Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the
Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmenul Tobacco
Smoke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and
Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.

"27. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK. ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act
(18 use 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act
provides that each contractor, subcontract or subgrantcc shall be prohibited from inducing, by any
means any person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any
part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantce should report all
suspected violations to OSI."

"28. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantce shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart 0 - Post
Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards with special emphasis on financial
procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and proper^ management (2 CFR 200
Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards.)"

Exhibit A
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Community Action Program Bclknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc., hereinafter "the Contractor," agrees to
utilize the Building Wealherization Program (BVVP) funds, which arc the subject of this contract and
which have their origin in the federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), to
provide eligible clients witli wealherization services, including healing system repair and replacement
services, which meet the requirements and standards for LIHEAP wealherization work as modified and
approved in the FY21 New Hampshire LIHEAP State Plan. In addition, all work completed using BWP
funds will be in accordance with the fiscal requirements of regulations set forth in 2 CFR 200 as
amended, and will be guided and implemented as directed by the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OS!) in
this contract and, from lime to time, in BWP Subgrantee Notices or other communications. The
Contractor agrees to revise BWP practices and procedures to incorporate instructions from OS!.

Contractor agrees to incorporate changes to thcNH Building Wcatherization Program as prescribed by
OSI to improve program delivery. Contractor further agrees to perform all wealherization services in a
manner thai will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs for low
income households in order to provide the best collaborative services for those households.

2. This BWP contract period, to be known as "BWP21," will commence on January I, 2021, and will have
a completion date of December 31, 2021, subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

3. BWP funds, which arc the subject of this contract, shall not be expended for hwlth and safety purposes.
However, in projects where BWP money is used without any federal Wealherization Assistance
Program (WAP) money involved - in other words, where there is no money for the inslallation of health
and safety measures - then that BWP project may include the cost of incidental repair measures (see the
NH Policies and Procedures Manual) if, by.so doing, the cumulative SIR for the entire project is not
brou^t down to below 1.

4. No portion of the BWP funding in this contract is set aside for training and technical assistance
(T&TA). However, Contractor may choose to expend some or all of the designated administrative
funds on T&TA activities. Appropriate back-up and justification for the use of those funds will be
required by OSI prior to reimbursement.

5. During the contract period, the Contractor agrees to complete wealherization services on the number of
units that is the result of dividing the Contractor's PY21 BWP allocation by $6,500. OSI understands
that the actual number of BWP completions will likely differ from that number due to the
unpredictability of heating system costs, etc., but OSI expects to see monthly BWP payment requests
from the Contractor in order to monitor BWP spending progress. Unit completions will be done to the
standards and expectations presented in LIHEAP wcatherization guidance, Ibis contract, and the NH
WAP Policies and Procedures Manual, 2019 edition, section on BWP management.

a. The number of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended shall conform to the
provisions of this contract. OSI reserves the right to review progress under this contract at any
time and may utilize information from such reviews to alter dwelling unit goals and funds to be
expended.

Initials
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b.. All funds provided to the Contractor under this agreement must be expended by. December 31,
202 !■;

6. Effective April I, 2015, all work performed under the federal V/eatherizatlon Assistance Program
(WAP) in New Hampshire must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of
Energy's Quality Work Plan (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). While
BW? work is to be managed mostly under DOE roles, and is therefore not subject to all of the same
specifications and requirements as WAP work. Contractor will manage BWP work in a manner which
provides clients with weatherization outcomes similar to those achieved under WAP guidance whenever
possible. The occasions when WAP rules must apply to BWP work are set out in this document
(Exhibit B).

7. Client eligibility for BWP-funded weatherization work should generally be the same as for WAP-
funded weatherization work: client income is to be no greater than 200% of the federal poverty
guidelines (FPG). However, because the LIHEAP eligibility income ceiling is higher than the WAP
ceiling (LIHEAP funds may be expended on clients with incomes at or below 60% of New Hampshire's
median income, which, in 2020, is an amount higher than 200% FPG), Contractor may utilize BWP
funds with clients who meet the LIHEAP income guidelines. If the project is to be in any part funded
using WAP funds, however, then the client's income must be no greater than 200% FPG.

8. BWP money may be "leveraged" (used in combination) with any other weatherization funding source.
If WAP/DOE money is used in a dwelling weatherization project, that project must be completed to
WAP.slandards and be approved as "WAP complete, ready for reimbursement" by a certified Quality
Control Inspector.

9. BWP money may be used for either full dwelling weatherization upgrades or for heating system
improvements alone. Contractor is obligated under this contract to expend at least 50% of the
contracted BWP amount on heating system repairs and/or replacements.

a. The P Y21 BWP package of forms (sec item 12b, below) for rq)oning BWP expenditures will
include columns to make clear whenever BWP money was used:

i. for restoration of healing services (repair or replacement of inoperable heating
equipment),

i i. for prevention of healing syislcm service loss (repair or replacement to avoid
approaching failure), or

iii. for supplementing or fully supporting a whole house weatherization project, with space
to report when heating system work paid for with BWP funds is part of that whole
house upgrade.

10. The maximum amount of BWP money to be spent on any one dwelling project is $8,000. If the BWP
budget for any one project must exceed that amount, a waiver must be received fixim OSI. OS! will
•review all waiver requests promptly and will provide approval when possible. However, applying the
expenditure guidelines in the FY21 NH LIHEAP Stole Plan, OSI will not approve total BW?
expenditures on any one dwelling weatherization project that exceed $ 12,000. This total is cumulative,
summing the BWP expenditures made during all visits to that dwelling.

11. BWP production includes:

a. Weatherization upgrades which are commensurate with a work plan developed from a thorough
dwelling energy audit and a TREAT model prepared by a qualified (BPI-ccrtified) Building
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Analyst or Energy Audilor or Quality Control Inspector who has developed the work plan (the
energy conservation measures - ECMs - to be installed) using cither the "benefit/cost ratio"
(B/C) methodology as defined by the utilities' Home Energy Assistance (HEA) program or the
"savings to investment ratio" (SIR) methodology as defined by the US DOE for use in WAP.
The methodology must be used when the project will include at least one ECM which is to
be paid for with WAP funds.

b. Final inspections which determine;
i. whether the project's work plan was appropriate and complete, taking into account the

methodology - B/C or SIR - used by the energy auditor to select the ECMs to be
installed, the prc-wealhcriralion condition of the building, etc.

ii. whether that appropriate work plan was fully and effectively implemented in the
dwelling, providing the client with a comprehensive energy-saving weatherization
outcome.

c. In projects where BWP money is used alongside WAP money in the same dwelling, that project
must be completed using the WAP rules and standards, including the installation of only those
measures which individually achieve an SCR equal to or greater than 1. the use of a certified
Quality Control Inspector to perform the final inspection, etc.

d. In projects where no WAP money is involved, the final BWP inspection may be performed by a
person holding a current BPI certification in at least one of the following areas: Building
Analyst, Energy Auditor, or Quality Control Inspector.

c. Because BWP money is not WAP money, BWP money may be used in weatherization upgrades
to dwellings which have received WAP-fundcd or BWP-funded upgrades since September of
1994 by presenting a waiver request to OS!. However:

i. re-weatherization should be done sparingly, remembering that there are thousands of
potential clients who have received no weatherization services at all;

ii. care should be taken, as always, to avoid even the appearance of favoritism;
Hi. WAP money cannot be part of the leveraging done on rc-weatherizcd dwellings which

received the benefit of at least some WAP dollars in the first round of weatherization

work done;

iv. ail BWP-fundcd second visits to previously weathcrizcd dwellings, whether that
weatherization work was done with WAP or BWP or HEA funds, must be preceded by
receipt of an approved waiver from OSl.

12. The tracking of BWP jobs will include:
a. Contractor preparation and maintenance of a client file on every BWP job. Contractor will

utilize a filing protocol which allows recovery of the file when checking future jobs against
previous weatherization work performed at that address, etc., even If no WAP money was used.
Future CAP agency WAP Directors need to be able to check on weatherization work completed
in dwellings, even when WAP money was not involved.

b. The use of a separate BWP reimbursement request package/spreadsheet supplied by OSl. All
jobs with any BWP money invested must be submitted for reimbursement on the BWP set of
forms. If a particular job also includes the use of any WAP money, then that job will have to be
submitted for WAP reimbursement as well, using the WAP reimbursement request forms
already in use. Therefore, if a single weatherization job uses funds from two different
weatherization funding sources managed by OSl, that job must be submitted to OSl twice in
order for it to be reimbursed for the correct amount from each source.

13. This agreement consists of the following documents; a completed P-37 form, and Exhibits A, B, C, D,
E, F, G, H, I, and J. All exhibits are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

ExHibii B
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

Iji consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services set forth in Exhibit B, the State agrees to
pay the Contractor, Community Action Program Bclknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc., up to the totaJ sum
of:

$89,553 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which
$ 4,478 is the maximum to be spent on BWP related administrative costs,
$85,075 (the balance) to be spent on weatheriiation activities (Program Activity).

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to OSI. Disbursementof the contracted amount shall be made
in accordance with the procedures established by the Stale and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance basis;
limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash
requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the purpose of the program. The Contractor'must make
timely payments to (sub)contractors in accordance with the contract provisions. Contractor shall submit a
payment request to OSI for each month of the contract period using the forms to be provided by OSI for
that purpose. Payment requests from Contractor shall be received at OSI no later than the 15* day of each
month or the first business day following the 15* day.

Administrative costs arc provided in order to support a specified number of unit completions at minimal
standards. Administrative funds may be pro-rated by OSI if production unit completions do not meet
expected production goals.

OS! will also be allowed, as a function of its administrative oversight, to modify conU^cted budget
amounts as necessary to ensure the efficient and effective operation of the contract as long as these
modified expenditures do not exceed the total "Contracted Amount" as specified above.

All obligations of the State, including the continuance of any payments, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.

Exhibit C
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 clseq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
alternative I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDrVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Actof 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 elseq.). The January 31,1989, regulations
were amended and published as Part U of the May 25, 1990.-Federai:R'egistcrTpaees 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors); prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Suie may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or dcbarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to:

Director, New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives,
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The pcnalties'that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be.
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

OS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(c) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees musj provide notice, including position title, to every grant
olTicer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numbcr(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith efTort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e). and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitc(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

2 Industrial Park Drive
Concord, NH 03301

Check O if there arc workplaces on file (hat are not identified here.

Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.. January 1, 2021. to Deccrnfe31, 2021
■  Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Michael Tabory, Deputy Director
Name andTltlc. of Authorized Conlractor- Rebhegehthtive

11/10/2020

iCbntractqnl^^ Date

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 10I-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HR.RP Program

BWP Program

Contract Period:^ January 1, 2021, to December 31, 2021
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, (hat:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behaifofthe undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any

■ Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with.this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-

•  contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require Chat the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not le^^ti^-$ 10,000 and not more than SI 00,000 for each such failure.

Michael .1ial?6jyi,E)cpiityDirectpr
^ctb7R€pfei(;^^ Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Bclknap-Meirimack Counties, Inc. 11/10/2020
Contractor Name Date

^rrv Exhibits D thru H
Pace 1-6 W

"lh>tioaC_i£< " . Dale
Award #:Ci2{K>2NWUIEA GFbA-i*93.5C8-



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFRPart 76 regarding Dcbarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSFENSlpN, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBCLITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(0 By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when OSI
determined to enter into this transaetion. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OSI agency to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primao' participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by OSI.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Dcbarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by OSI, without modification; in all lower tier covered transactions and in

.all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, OSI may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

^"^^^sExhibiiS D thru H
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CERTIFICATTON REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITV MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(11) The prospective primary parlicipanl certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding (his proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embealcmcnt, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the oiTenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b)
of this certification; and

(d) have hot within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(12) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary delusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
4S CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lowerjRertoycrcd transactions..

Michael Tabd^,.t)ep"uty'Director
tty^.ignature><ipntractprJTcp Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc. 1 1/10/2020

Contractor Name Dale

Exhibits 0 ihru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITUTIVES

STANDARD EXHtBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and l.l2oflhe General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

.. Michael TatioW^'D.ep'utYrDirector .

CoiitrtSorRcp^^ Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. 11/10/2020
Contractor Name Dale

Exhibits D thru H

RngeOef?
Initials Date \ (/T
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NEW HAMPSHmE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXJilBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to
children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs cither directly or through State or
local governments, by Federal grant, coop-act, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Mcdicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1,000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantccs shall certify accordingly.

1  .

. Michael.Tab^pl^^BeRuty^DU^

* Contractgf X'^resegfetr^^ Sig^'tu Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action ProRram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. 11/10/2020

Contractor Name Date

Initials

Award tf Ori.Q02l^

vExhiiiits D thru H
.Pafie.7j5f 1

•Date

a; CFDA .«93.-568



DOEF 1600.5(06-94)
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All Other EdiiionJ Arc Obsolete

NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OFSTRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCWMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED
PROGRAMS

0MB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintwning the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of (his collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight. Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (0MB), Paperwork Reduction
Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

GommiinitT. AcifiohTirbgmmiBelkh^p^Mc'mmftck'CSunticSi lric. (Hereinafter called the "Applicant")

HEREBY AGREES to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the
Federal Energy Administration Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of thc Encrgy Reorganization Act of
1974 (Pub. L. 93-438), Title XX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-
568, and Pub. L. 94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135). Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the
Department of Energy Organization Act of 1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of
' 1976, as amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the
above laws and regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United
States shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which
the Applicant receives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicability and Period of Obligation
In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant
by the Department of Energy. .

Employment Practices
Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal a^isUncc
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national
origin, sex, age. or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or tcmiination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward-mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or
I  -ExHiblir
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DOEF 1600.5 (06-94)
OMSCoWOtNo. t9l»«400

All Oihcr Ediiionj Are Obsolete

subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, propcrt>', or siructxirc to comply
with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrccipicnt shall be required to sign a written assurance
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data CollectioD and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Encrg)'. Such infonmalion shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services arc or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining whether any persons arc or will be denied such scfN'ices on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) (he present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, ago and disability in any planning or advisory body which is on integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (Including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the
date hereof, to the Applicants by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after
such data of application for Federal assistance which, arc approved before such dale. The Applicant recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements
made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
pcrson(s) whose signatures appear below and who arc authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifies that it has complied, or.'^'atj^ithin 90 days of the date it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § lp4:0V5^opy will be fii^hed written
request to DOE).

Michael Tabory, Deputy Director Signature .

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
2 Industrial Park Drive, PO Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302-1016
(603)225-3295

Date 11/10/2020

Initials)
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NEW HAMPSHmE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

{  STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accounlabillly and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees
of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October I, 2010,
to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the
award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Svbaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier ofthc entity (DUNS#)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arc from tiic Fedcml guvcnnnenl, and tliuse
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end ofthc month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 ofthc General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Ifi^c'ial Accountability and Xranspappt

Mich'ael/TaBorv: Peoutv Brfectdr

Jioschtaii^e'SifeMtniQ^' (Authorized Contractor Representative Name A. Title)

Communitv ActiQn"'BrQBram.BelknaD-MeiTimack Countics,.Inc. • 11/10/2020
(Contractor Name) (Dale)

Exhibit J

Page Top
Initials .1 |X^. Date
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NEW HAMPSHERE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC tNITTATTVES
STANDARD EXHJLBIT J

FORMA

As ihe Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions,! certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

I. The DUNS number for your entity is-^ 07-399-7504

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

.X .NO .YES

If the answer to 02 above ts NO, stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YXS, please answer (he following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or lS(d)oflhc Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

.  ,N0 YES

If the ans^ver to 03 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to 03 above i.s NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:"

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount: ̂

Initials
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state of New Hanipshire

Pepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

1. Williwn M. Gardner, Secretary of Stttc of the Sute of New Hampshire, do hereby certify (hat 'COMMUNTTY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERJUMACK COUNnES, fNC. is a New Hampshire Nor^jrofit Coiporaiion registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28. 1965.1 further certify that ail fees and documents required by the SecreUiy of
Suit's ofRcc have beco received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business D: 63021

Certificate Number 0004923691

Op,

5R
las

O

A %

4".

fN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my haod aod cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

(his 1st day of June A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Phone (603) 225-3295
(800) 856-5525
Fox (603) 228-1898
Webwww.bm-cap.org
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BELKNAP-MERRIMACK.COUNTIES. INC.
SM»0*rCftiN« COwuUMirilS 9INCC >«»i

2 Industrial Park Drive

P.O. Box 1016

Concord. NH

03302-1016

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I■•'Denrils^Martiho.. President.iBo'ard bf'Pire'ctors-. hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknao-Menimack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on March 12, 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Executive Direcfor, Michael Tabory, Deputy Direcfor, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst Dennis Martino, President Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of Community tolon.Rrooram.Beiknab'Menlhriacki^ounties'.^lnc. to enter into contracts
or agreemei^wth the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.
Such authority to be in force and effect until .Dece'mber^l..2021. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the Slate of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:;,
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dennis Martino
Title: President. Board of Directors

Rtv. 11/12/3020
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OVn/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIV6LY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSUR£R<S), AUTHORIZED
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^  . WLFEBURO'NORTH
To the Board of Dtrectors . co.vcoRn
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. stkahum
Concord. New Hampshire

-INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on:the Financiaj Statements
We have audited the accompanying frnancial statements of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of February 28, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses and cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the years then
ended.

Manaaeme'ht'SiRespon^ Statements.
Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditof^'Resbdhsibili^^^^
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Invotves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also Includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating- the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



do/n/on

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above preser^t fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 28, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the
years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Oth'erynfdrmG^on

Our audit was (^ducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requiromonts. Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and Is not a required part of the financial statements. Such Information is the
responsibility of management arxl was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures. Including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other ReDdrtiria Reauindiv Goverrimerit'Auditma:Sta^
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
January 16, 2020, on our consideration of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of lavrs, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Concord. New Hampshire
January 16, 2020



COMMUNlWACfl^DNffl^^^

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITIGN

FEBRUARY 28: 2019 AND 2018.

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Duo from related party

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

iLlASlL'iTIES AND Net ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable
Accounts payable
Accnjed expenses
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Notes payable, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

WKhoul Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Soc Notes to Financial Statements
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$  1.411,762
2,321,041

22,800

52,632
102.522

•3-910:757:'

4,749.673
... S.979.320.

10,720,993

^ 6,330;5a0

4,398,413

139.441

139.441

$  183,269
1,069.165

1.066;748
998.^2

3,317.514

781.385

4.098.899

3.842,297
507.415

■4.349.712

2018

$  1.751.685
2,993,405

26,567
88.287
98.753

. •4:958:697-

4.634.220
. 6.227.722

10.861,942

6.936.806

3.925,134

139.441

139,44.1

% -8i448;611 $ 9,023,272.

(  172.745
1,443.697
1,056,676
1.187.333

3,860,451

962.781

.. ,4'.823;232:-

3.497,187
702.853

4,200.040

S 8.448,611. $ 9.023.272



community ACTION PROGJ^A^ .;MEffllMACK.eQ

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2619'

Without Donor With Donor 2019

IRestrictlons Restriclte'hs' Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards )  19,205.554 5 $  19,205.554

Other lurKls 4.706.408 169.246 4.875,654

In-tcind 829,464 629:464

United Way 18,227 .. . "r .18,227,

Total revenues and other support 24,759,653 169,246 24.928,699

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 364.6B4 .  (364.6641 *

Total 25.124/337 (195.436) 24,928^699

EXPENSES

Salaries end wages 8,905.642 I- 6,905,642

Payroll taxes and benefits 2.428.774 2.428.774

Travel 324.491 324,491

Occupancy 1.310.477 -
1,310,477

Program eervicee 6.041.429 - 0,941.429

Other costs 1.707.999 - 1.707,999

Depreciation 330.491 - .  330,491

In-kind .  829.924 .  829.924.

Total expenses 24.779.227 24.779.227

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 345.110 149.672

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR .. .. 3.497.187' .702:653 4.200,040

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  3,842^297 $  507,415 S  4.349.712,

See Notes to Financial Statements
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:COWMUNlfYAGtlONP^

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED^FEBRUARY 28a2018

Without Donor

Restrictions .

With Donor

.Restrictions

2018

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Other funds

In-kifKl

United Way

%  .1:7;935;W7
••r;538;50t.
1"?147;978^
' 3b:S.i7:

$

2.870.131

$  17.935.847

4.408.632

1,147.978
30.517

Total revenues and other support 20.652.843 2.870.131 23.522,974

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS .2,811.389 .  .(2.811.389)

Total 23i464:232- .58.742 .  23.522.974

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs

Depreciation
In-kind

8.295.198

2.054.965

281,239

1.222.773
7.070,371

1.636.269

236.706

1.-147.'978;

-

6,295.198

2.054.965
261,239

1.222.773

7.979.371

1,636.269

236.706
1.147.978

Total expenses 22.854=;499 .„.22.854.499.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 16Q9;73;3; 58.742 668.475

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 2:887:454; .  . 644.111 3,531.565

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  :3-497-i187- S  702.853 S  4.200.040,

See Notes to Financial Statements
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dOMMUINifYApTlbN:-^^^

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 26; 20i9 Al'JD.20X8-

2019 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIViTiES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to recondle change In net assets to

net cash provided by operating actlvllies;
Depreciation
Decreese (increase) in current assets;

Accounts receivable

inventory

Prepaid expenses !
Decrease (increase) In current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVmES

Additiona to property
Investment in partnership

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

149,672

330,491

672,364

3,767
35.655

(374,532)
10,072

■ (■189.00.1).

638,488

(803,770)
(3.769)

..(607,539)

ilZSIlZi}"

(170,872)

668,475

236,706

(831,433)
(5.037)
6.028

595,990
37,250
28,002

735:981

(523,729)
(13.526)

(537,257)

(1r7.9;3B3).

f^:79?363)..

(339,923) <1^;i4;i'

1.751..6B5 .. . ■-.i:i!7j;2;344i

$  1,4t1.762 iS r;751^i

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for interest $_ 63,133 73.582

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ̂ MERRIMACK CQUNTIg^LlWfc--

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR fhiE'lY^R/ENCiEb'FEBRUARY jB. 2b.i9'-

Proaram. iManaaerriorit Total

Salaries and wages $  8,682.073 $  223.569 % 8,905.642

Payroll taxes end benefits 2.320.432 108,342 2.428.774

Travel 323.333 1,158 324.491
Occupancy 1,293.439 17,038 1.310,477
Program Services 8.941.429 8,941,429

Other costs;

Accounting fees 57.892 57,892

Legal fees 19.554 3,520 23.074
Supplies 284.548 ff- 284,546

Postage and shipping 53.134 ..t: 53.134
Equipment rental and meintenance 2,208 - 2.208

Printing and publications 45,786 3,732 49.516

Conferences, conventions and meetings 22,640 27,848 50,668
Interest 46.478 16,655 63.133

Insurance 143,136 6.760 149,696

Membership fees 9,691 9.093 18,984

Utility and maintenance 214,214 --•r 214,214

Computer services 37.562 1,304 38,666

Other 701,232 612 701,844

Depreciation 330,491 •t; 330,491
ln>klnd 829,924.' - >■ - - 829i92'4.

Total functional expenses 24;301i7.04f $  477.523. 5 . 24,779.227.

See Notes to Financial Statements
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GQMMUNITy ACtiQt^rpROGRAM BELRNAP ̂ M'ERRIMAfeK^6l!j^^^
N

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

EgR'THE:»EAR€^6MFEBRU

^ProQ'ro'm; •Manaqcm^nti' Total

Salaries and wages $  8,026,291 $ 266,907 $ 8.29S.196

Payroll taxes and benefits 1,948.839 106,126 2,054,965

Travel 279,829 1,410 281,239

Occupancy 1.107.004 115,769 1,222.773

Program ̂ rvices 7.979.371 7.970.371

Other costs: ,
Accounting fees 24,915 27,549 52.464

Legal fees 5,137 5.137

Supplies 236,553 26.718 263,271

Postage and shipping 49,153 t.052 50,205

Equipment rental and maintenance 1,680 - 1,680

Printing and publications 3,643 27,649 31.292

Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,730 9,544 23.274

Interest 68,274 5,306 73.582

Insurance 123.457 35,257 156,714

Memt>ership fees 19,045 8,668 27.713

Utility and maintenance 165,882 64,390 250,272

Computer services 21,517 17,179 38,696

Other 645,081 14,688 659,969

Depreciation 231,959 4,747 236.706

ln>Kind .  - .■1-;'1>t97'8-: ... .... ... . . ....\ —..,-1,.1.47,97.8

Total functional expenses ,5., 22.119,338 (V , 7351^^1 $ 22,854,499

See Notes to Financial Statements
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■GQMMUNITY-AGmiQN PROGRAM-BELKNAP-- MERRifVlAC^^

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 20l9/ANte01^

1, KORGANIZATIQN.AN6:SUMMARy OFSlSNlRGANT AeCQ'UrjTINO^^^^^

Nature of OrqarilMtibh
Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties. Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

.Ba'sis :df.'Accbuht1hq
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America.

NewACcountinqPronou'nceme'nt
Oh August"18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic - 958) -
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses
the complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in
information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in
the type of infomiation provided about expenses and Investment return. The
Organization has presented these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied
retrospectively to all periods presented.

FinarKlal Statement Presentation
The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the Organizabon to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may, be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net .assets .with. donor , restrictions Include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary In nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual

-  in nature, wheret>y the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.



Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $507,415 and $702,853 at
February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13.

Income Taxes.

the Organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and Is exempt from federal
income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue
Sen/ice has determined them to be other than a private foundation,

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the Stale of New
Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for
years before 2015.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position taken on its information relums for the years (2016 through 2019), and
has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 arc capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows;

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3-7 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation" of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

/■Gash.ahd Gash.Equlvialents
For purposes of the statement of cash •flqv^, the.'Cirganization consifes all ligpid
investments purchased with original matuliities'. of three mdhths' or iless: to be dbsh
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses In such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with
respect to these accounts.

Contributed Services
Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with PASS ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, If the services (a)

10



create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

.Vpjunlee'f^ provided, .various sen/ices thrqughbut the :^eaf\(hat :are not recognized as
•cpntribljtiqnis-jn" the financial statements.since-the recd^hjllpn.criteria under FASB ASC
•Nd^ 958'we?evn'6t'met?

•IhrKihtfiibbriatidhs// N 6 he as hitfa ri sabtl dli s

;|Hfe;;.estiml^^ fp.rJlfieASelVjce.;:Supplies;a„nd'Space;th^^^^
;inbur prider hpriniaf .pqerating; ia.ctiyities.. ' The; OTgariliatibh 'receiv"e;q':$82'9^^^^^
:$^!..1,'4:7;!-97^LqAonate(d:,fiiqiijtjea,.;seiyices.;and:;suppliesTbWhe\y^
•20.19 and;20;i8, respoctiveiy.ias.'^^fo^^^^

The Organization .receives coqtnb.uted professional .serviced that- are* requii'ed; to be
recorded in aecordanqe with '.HAS'B: ASC No. 958. ThV these
services was determined to be $35,519 and $292,141 for the years ended. February 28,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

The -pfganization alsb-feceives contributed food cqmr]pqdlties:ahd^ goods .thai are
reqiiiredTo be recorded in accordance with FASBilASb-No."]958^ The estimated; fair
value of these ifqbd; do(t)rhpdities and goods was deterrT\ihad to be $793,945 and
$846,237 for the yfa'rs:e'njled' February 28, 2019 and 2018, Tespectively.

The Agency pays beiow-market rent for the use of certain faciHties. In accordance with
generayy-'ad^pted accounting principles, the differehqevibet^^ paid if Or the
use of tbCtsdJiities and the fair market.value ofrtfe'repYbiJapace has beeniteboiiied as
;an! ih.Mod;'dq^ es:-ian-^Kihd in the accompariying "finaricial
;statemenfe ifhe 'e^jma^^ .faifiyajueipf the .donation was determined to be $9,600 fbr.-
the.year ̂ nded Februaf^^ 2bT8'! thdte was no donation for the year ended February
28.'2019.^' "

Advdftistha:

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 totaled $54,461 and $32,655,
respectively.

InVehtbrv.

Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Functlbhal Alloc'atibhrbTExpenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the program services and supporting activities beneHted. Expenses are charged
to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or estimated usage based on
lime spent on each program by staff.

Expense .Methodof allocation

Wages and benefits Time and effort
Depreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

11



2.

The follovving represents the'Organization's financial assets as of February 28, 2019
and 2018;

2019 2018

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $■ i:-,4.i;i,762: $ 1,751,685
Accounts receivable 2;32TW1': 2,993,405
Investments 102:522: 98,753
Line of credit available .  - ibo.bob. . 200.000,

Total financial assets .  _ 4.035 325. .5.043.843
Less amounts not available to be used within

one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 507,415 702,853
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year . .. - - >* -

Amounts not available within one year 507.415
-

.  702:853;

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months .id

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $3,880,000 and $3,530,000 respectively, at February 28.
2019 and 2018.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end.'Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 28. 2019 and 2018. The Organization has no
policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.

4. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$998,332 and $1,187,333 as of February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

5. RETIREMENT PLAN
The Organlz'a'tibn'has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2019 and 2018
totaled $184,961 and $202,725, respectively..
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6. LEASED FACILITIES

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 28, 2019 and 2018, the annual lease expense for
the leased facilities was $480,258 and $479,964, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended

Rebrtiafv.28- Amount

2020 $  468.715
2021 368,835

2022 104,206
2023 103,206
2024 103.206

Thereafter _  . 972:603:

Total $■ .2;l^b.771;

7; ACCRUED; EARNED TIIVIE
The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees In the amount of $377,163 and $369,827 at

•  February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT
^  The 'Orgahization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a

bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments
based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (5.50% and 4.50% at February 28, 2019
and 2018, respectively) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured
by all the Organization's assets. There was no outstanding balance on the line at
February 28, 2019 and 2018.

9.. LONG TERM DEBT
Long termTiebTconsisted of the following as of February 28. 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

5.75% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center. $ 649.372 $ 773,551

13



10.

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. 64,943 71,843

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located in Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head
Start. 290.132

Total 964.654 1,135,526

Less amounts due within one year 183269 172.745

Long term portion t  S: 962?78H^

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 28, 2019 were as follows;

Year Ending
:Februarv-28 Amount

2020 $  183,269
2021 194,445
2022 206,317

2023 218,926
2024 133,205

Thereafter 28:492.

'9^4-654;

PRORERTY-ANaEQUIPfVIENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Land $  168,676 $. r68,676
Building and Improvements 4,580.996 4,465.544
Equipment and vehicles - 5.979.321 e.227.722

10,728.993 10,861.942

Less accumulated depreciation 6.3¥b.586- 6.936.808

Property and equipment, net $ 4-:39'8":41-3 i$ 3.'Si25v-1'3"4

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 was $330,491
and $236,706. respectively.
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11. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28, 2019.

During the year ended February 28. 2018, the Corporation for National and Community
Service (CNCS) conducted a monitoring of its program and found that the Organization

■ was not In full compliance with the program requirements. As a result, CNCS
disallowed $37,000 of grant expenditures. The Organization returned the funds in full
during April 2018.

12. ICONCENTRATtON.OF RISK

For the years ended February 28. 2019 and 2018, approximately $12,000,000 (48%)
and $11,000,000 (47%). respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received
from the Department of Health and Human Services. The future scale and nature of the
Organization Is dependent upon continued support from this department.

13. jNEfAS'SCTS:WlTH;DQi^
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 28, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

NH Food Pantry Coalition $  663 $ 663

Senior Center 137,743 127.746
Elder Services 200.912 390,089
NH Rotary Food Challenge 5,068 5,068
Common Pantry 5,534 5,912
Caring Fund 11.811 14.272
Agency - FAP 6,342 14,746
Agency Head Start .  137.967 140,979
Other Programs 1.375 3.378

Total net assets with donor restrictions 'S. 5d7i4i5. 702.853
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14. RELa^ED:BAR1^-TRANSA'CTIONS'.
the •Oi^anization 'is (related to the following corporation as a result of common
management:

.ReiaisdrRartv: Function.

CAPBMC Development Corporation Real Estate Development

There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Development"Corporation at both February 20,
2019 and 2018.

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

.Relafe^-Rartv Function

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing. Inc. HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly. Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc., HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing. Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation ^ Property Development
Ozanam Place. Inc. Transitional Supportive

Services

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership 1 Low Income Housing, Tax
Credit Property

The services performed by the Organ'ization Included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The total amount due from the related parties (collectively) at February 28. 2019 and
2018 was $185,937 and $114,032, respectively and is included in accounts receivables.

15. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability vtrilh the presentation of the current year.

16. FAIR .VALUE OF FINANCIAL.INSTRUMENTS
Community Action Program Belknap-Mem'mack Counties, Inc. has also Invested money
relating to its Fix-It program in certain rriutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $101,522 and $97,753 at February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

16



ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instrumenls. provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framewor1( in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FAS6 ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB .ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarciiy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unot)servable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 28. 2019 and 2018, the Organization's investments were classified as Level 1
and were based on fair value.

Fair Value Measuremeiits using Significant bbseivablie-lnputS'fLevel .l)

2019 2018

Beginning balance - mutual funds $ 97,753 $ 84,225
Total gains (losses) - mutual funds 3,769 9,528
Purchases . . r.-- . _ .. 4.000

Ending balance-mutual funds ■£. .101^522 £ 97.753

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instalments.

The Organization also has $1,000 Invested in a Partnership, The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public Health, at February 28. 2019 and 2018.
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17. FISCAL.AGENT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc. acts as the fiscal agent
for the following community organizations; Franklin Community Services Building
(Franklin), ttie Common Pantry (Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, the NH Rotary Food Challenge and FCP/SCP Association Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and oversight of the revenues received
(donations) and the expenses (utilities, food and emergency services).

18. SUBSEQliJENT.:EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but t)efore the financial statements are available to be Issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized
subsequent events are events'that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date.' Management has
evaluated subsequent events through January 16, 2020, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL^INRbRiVlATibN.

(See Independent Auditors' Report)
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rPROGRAM BELKNAP-IVIERR^^^ INfc..

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

■ FOR THE YEA'R ENDED FEBRU&R^

NOTE 1 iBAsISiOFjPRE^ENTATibN
The'accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 28, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniiform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap«Merrimack Counties, inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organlzatbn.

NOTE 2 t'SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTiNb PQUGIES
Expenditures recited oh* the Sched'ule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 ^iNDIRECT-COST RATE
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 [FOOD COMMODITIES: AND VEHICLES
Nonnidhetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMBNTvAUbW^^^^

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audKed, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28. 2019 and
2018, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 16, 2020.

tMemal CohTml'.OverFinariciat Reporiiha

In planning and peffo'rmirig"'our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s intemal control over finandal reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program ^Iknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and correcte<^ on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2019-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

Compliahcerahd O'therMatten

As part ""of obtaining" reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the detemtination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purtidse'dfthiS'ReDdrt^

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 16, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

,REGil!jlRED;By THE^UNIFORM GUIDANCE;

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
Concord, f^ew Hampshire

Repotiori:.Gornpllance^f6r'EiachMai^^^^
We'have audlt^ Corhmunlty Adi6n''Prc)gr''arh'Belk'naj3-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the CMS Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2019:.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs,

MahaaemehVsiR^^^^^
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors'Mespohsibilitv
diir resi5onsi&liry Is to" express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs baS;ed on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.
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Obini6n on:Each Major
In our opinion, Community Action Program' Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28,2019.

Report oh IntemahCohtrbTOvienCtim^^^
Management of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in Internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance Is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility . that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet Important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies In internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 16. 2020
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-GQMMUN!t^,AGTli^^^PRC^R^^

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR tl^E YEAK ENDED REBRUARY: 28: 20.19-

SUMM^Ry OF A-ilblTdRS' RESULTS'.

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. One material weakness relating to the audit of the financial staternents is reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit

4. No significant deficiencies in interma! control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Program 93.568, Aging Cluster.93.044, 93.045 and 93.053. Social Services Block Grant
93.667, U.S. Department of Agriculture. Women. Infants and Children 10.557. U.S.
Department of Transportation, Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509, Enhanced
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 20.513.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B prograrns was $750,000.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2019-001

Con^Jtio'n: Th6 financial statements presented to the audrtor at the beginning of
fieWwork Onderstate.d net Income by a material amount. This was primarily the result of
Improper cut off due to revenue related to the fiscal year under audit being recorded to the
subsequent period.

Criterie: The Organization's internal control procedures should be structured so that
accounts are reconciled and reviewed on a timely basis and a review is completed prior to
closing the financial records for the year.

Cause; The Organization lost staff and their accumulated knowledge of Fiscal
Department processes and procedures. This led to general ledger entries being posted late
or mis-posted.

Effect: Significant adjusting journal entries were proposed by the auditor to ensure
accurate revenue cut off for the period under audit. Additionally, the auditor proposed a
significant adjusting entry to reduce expenses as a result of workers' compensation
Insurance expenses being over-accrued.

Recommendations: The auditors recommend that the Organization implement
procedures so dial balance sheet accounts are reconciled and reviewed by management
on a monthly basis. Further, the auditors recommend that (he financial closing process be
simplified and include a review of all significant balance sheet and profit and loss accounts.

Views of Responsible Officials: Staff tumover and short staffing resulted in the errors
leading to this finding. Agency Officials recognize the need to ensure the presence of
qualified staff for operational continuity. The Organization will implement procedures so
that balance sheet accounts are reconciled and reviewed by management on a monthly
basis. The Director of Finance will also develop procedures to produce financial reports on
a periodic basis.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Effective September 2020

n. 'p. COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK CO.UNTIES, INC.

BOARD OFAIRECTORS

Dennis Martino, President Kathy Goode

David Siff, Esq., Vice President Heather Brown

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer \ Theresa M. Cromwell

!

Robert (Bob) Kricgcr, Secretary-Clerk j Ben Wilson, AAMS®

1

Sara A. Lcwko . \

i

!
1

i  A. Bruce Carri, OFF, CPA EA

Current fiscal year (3/1/20-2/2^1) board meetings-3/12/20, 5/14/20, 9/17/20, 11/12/20, 1/14/21



Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.

Building Weatheritation Program (BWP) Program Contract

January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021

Key Personnel

\

Brandon Boewe

Weatherization Energy Auditor/Quality Control Inspector

$45,045.00

Kenneth Boyer

Weatherization Energy Auditor

$42,900.00

Karen Lingncr

Administrative Assistant

$33,481.50

Kenneth Landry
/

Weatherization Support Coordinator

$40,950.00

Christopher Vought

Director of Housing Rehabilitation and Energy Conservation

$62,185.50



Brandon

Boewe

SUMMARY

I cbiri^t(rt lh|n energy Sewjcflt Program ai^kes'/R^ioaGpininynlix CoWjge
so ihatM'cwid d'e^op,lhe,sto^ knpV/|^^^ S?'.''cip b^cilj;lfnptpw« ih«ir-
homti'^raWoMet IhcV anergy'eijpiniti' Over the paiiavJoy*?'*'';
vatloui ̂ iltbfts tiiot'hnye rnade mo a wdUoondeti indivklual;in the green
energy field, l-w^nt ̂ b^f^n(J.b;pbsJltof\ where rciihllarow and coo.linw'learnlrig to
prepare myaell (or a stror>geMuiure.

EXPERIENCE

Energy Audttof, Community Action Program B«lknap>Merrtmack
Countlos, (nc.
Corword. NH — June. 2016 • Present

Accomplishments

•  Pedormed ervargy audHs on dienls' homes.
. Worked with c&enu to determine prlodly measurea to save the rnost

heat and eiectridlv with the funding ovailable.

•  UHtized energy auditing aottware (TREAT) to suomir work orders to iilIHiy
Mrnpanies (or fundirtg approve).

•  Created work orders end communicated with confractora on Mst
practices to achieve our projects' goals.

Building Materials Customer Service Associate, Lowe's Home
Improvement Center
Cortcord, NK — Apri) 2016 • June 2016

Accompllahmenis

•  Engaged with customers to help them (ind wnal product they rteed lor
their projects

•  Kept store strclves organized end well stocked with rnerchandise
• Worked with other team members to puB internet orders
•  Assisted customers with loadirsg materials into their vohkles
•  Guided povrer equipment through store to cruurc safely of customers

and other ompAoyees

•  Performed daily sefeiy checks to keep sM lopstocked products ere stored
safely

Coos County Energy Auditor, Trl-County Community Action
Program
Tanwonh/Berfm. NH — July 2015 - April 2016

Accomplishments

•  Performed energy audits on cUenls" homes in much greater frequency
than In my past positions.

• Worked wilh clienJs to delermine priority meesurei to sev« the most
heat arid elect/lcily with the tundlrtg avallal>le.

»  Utltixed energy eudltlng software (TREAT) to submit work order* le rtdliiy
companies lor funding approval.

•  Created work orders and communicated with the installslion crew on
best practices to achieve our projects' goal*.

•  Reies'iCd homes after work was performed to coofimt lUccessM
insiBllations of energy saving n'reasures.



Met vnii commuftJty memberi to discuss loexpcnsivB. but cost eftscdve
'do-«1-youfssir methods homeowner* cowld use W *•*• on Ibek energy
expenses.

•Assisted crows with Instelletlon of insutoltoo snO sir seefinQ measures

Woathorizatlon Instillbf/Enorgy Auditor, Groen ft Wirod Buiidlng
Soiutlons

Loudon, NH — November 2014 - Juno 20tS

Accompilshments

t  Leerned haisds on sKDIs required for Irvstsllitten of tmprovemenls
kiduding sir sesiino. open blow I dense pecWng ceMose. instiling
foam board.

•  Became more lamlliar with the Ins-and-ouis of buUding syaiem* as an
installer.

4  Perfonned energy audits on cBents' homes that Included CA2 testing,
combustloo analysis. Wower door testing, and creatinfl worS scopea lor
the crew to Impienwnt

■i WoAed wilh clieots to organize piiodty measures to fit their budgets aitd
improve their homes.

Reeldentlai Ertorgy Specialist Intom. 60S Associates Inc.Manchestor, NH—A^2014-November2014

Accomplishments

•  Became pioficiertl with energy modellrtg software
•  Analyzed blueprtMs for new homes urtder conslniction
•  Corwnonlcated with builder* and homeowner* to assure quality service
4  AsslsaK) in Irxspections Induding bkwmr doer end duct leeicege tests
• Woitrsd with Housing and Urban Development to aeate Green Physical

Needs Asseeamenis and reporta !

Intom, New Hampshire Ball Bearing, Astro DIulsian
Laconia, NH — Decembar 2013 - Aprtl 2014

AccempUaiiments
• Wotejf with mainienanoe technicians to Identity energy aaving

opp^'nllies vritli.eqii^ent apd-the building envelope:^
•  Cret^ afMS/ojithe bulWng envelope wfth

recommendatlw* on hw to corrort leekege
4  Became famiiarwith energy mortloring software including having 10

troubieahooi the system after a had crashed..
4  Cataloged electricity o»tge data with software
4 Wrote e guide for meintenance etaff on how to ui« energy monitoring

eoftware end eelalog data
4  SubmlUed a report to the EnvifonmeAlai Manager on how to Improve

efTicicncy of (he compen/a new boUera



EOUCATtON

i Uikiu'RogloniCmnrhun^ I —-'JOil -2015

itabhetf tf* EntfcySeivioet Proorem •< tRCCbpeo#frbef o>2015. Ih»d
bMn 9atr« lo tohod p^. wttna.cuppoftInQ mytoV tuO Otnci lo.(^r«n
•due«tton tnd 6ufW.f8«i.y«rt5 aperience".- I'm midy to mow (of*^ ffiy
tflroof In sutWnibio enirgy u I krtcrw thit thia edooBllon he* modo me t elfpna
oindUale.

skills

• B^erienee In reeidentlil, convncrdel. end tndustrlel energy eflUency
• Certlfted BP! Bu8dingAnily«(einoe2012

» PwfldontwAftMIeroeoftworn, EkooI. end PowwPoJntiswelejotief
•ppOceOon* eutf m REM Rela. TREAT, end StruxuroWero.

• nrelAldandCPRCertlted

«•

REFERENCES

RelkrwM et« ■voOeble upon reque»).



Kenneth Boyer

PROfESSIONAL SUMMARY

MoUvaied and energetic with 7+ yoore experience Improving energy emdoncy
in homes, schools, businesses, etc... Hard worMng and outgoing. I em a
reliable project leader as well as a trusted team member.

EXPERIENCE

Turn Cycle Solutions. UC.. Nashua. NH - Energy Auditor/Operations
Manager

JANUARY 2018 • AUGUST 2018

Acquired BR Building Analyst Certmcatlon. Performed energy audtts
Uiioughout New Hampshire within the NHSaves weatherlzatlon
program. Vast knowtedgo and understanding of robotcc and Incontlvas
available to residents in the region, regardless of heat source.
Estimaled project cost, as well as annual savings In both energy ond
energy expertses.

. Managed scheduling. Includltrg audits, todow up eppolnlments as well
as a fleW staff of up to six (6) Weatherliatlon/reUom Installers.

• Other responslbllllies Include material Inventory maintenance, client
Intake, assisting In the floW when needed, networking and outreach as
well as fleet maintenance .

Energy Efficient Investments Inc., Merrimack, NH - Weatherization
Tech

FEBRUARY 2012 • JANUARY 2018

•  Job/proJect leader, team member In large and small Insulation projects.
2-part spray foam. 1-port spray foam, fiberglass and cellulose. Proficient
in door end window ueatment/weetherliatlon.

;• Knowledge and involvement in all phases. AWIRy to perform, lead and
train others In cellulose preparation ond Inslallatlon. ventlleUon. various
flb-saallng methods, suspended callings, Jobslte and personal
cleanliness, etc..



ChockmBte Plus. Manchoster/Londonderry, NH - Driver/Cook

NOVEMBER 2007 - AUGUST 20W

•i. Tako orders, prep/cook. delJver food as well as customer scMco.
•  Open/dose store, stock. Inventory and (uW cleaning procedures.

EDUCATION

'Monchostor Comrriurilty-Collego, Manchester;
AppWed;Sc/edce^w:BW ConstnjcVon Te^np.l^gy-
SEPTEMBER 2006 ♦ JUNE 2008

Skills

Experience In weatherizatloa energy auditing, operations/project
menagement, soles, dlent/crew scheduling, estimating, material stock/supply.
drafUng bloeprlnl reeding, Microsoft Office. BPI DuUdIng Analyst (Issued
(M/l8).O5he-l0 Certified. DOT/MedlcaHy certified box truck operator (cxp 6/21).
EPA/HUD RRP Certified Renovator. Certified class 3 forWlfl Operator.
Exporlencertralning In crewAeam leadership. Experience In framing, siding,
painting and many phases of building construction.



Karen M. Lingner

■ EmolOvmerirHistory

2009 - Present Administrative Assistant - Housing Rehabilitation/Energy Conservation
Community Action Program

1 am responsible for a variety of administrative duties which facOliate the smooth running of
the Housing Rehabilitation and Energy Conservation Programs. I am responsible for
coordinating the record keeping and reporting functions of the programs as well as Invoicing
and data entry.

2003 - 2009 Scheduler - CHNT and CAT Dispatch back-up
CommunltY Action Program

I was responsible for various adminlstratlye duties to enable the efficient operation of CNHT
(Central New Hampshire Transportation), a ride sharing program. I was responsible for
covering CAT Dispatch when Dispatcher was not available whirti could be anywhere from an
hour to a whole shift

1999-2003 Careglver for Parents

1987 -1999 Customer Service Representative
Stevens insurance Agency

1 was responsible for atl aspects of obtaining, expanding and servicing accounU for
approximately one thousands clients In regards to personal and business Insurance.

EduMtidn

Glastonbury High School, Glastonbury CT-graduated 1967
Licensed NH Property & Casualty Agent -1991



Kenneth Landry

To obtain a challenging position that will utilize my skills and abilities and provide me with the
opportunity for growth and advancement.

willing to relocate: Anywhere

Work Experience

Cycle Counter
Electronics for Imaging - Lortdonderry, NH
October 2019 to December 2019 c

• Ensure effective utilization of productlorv/warehouse area and control inventory counts
• Meets optimum Inventory performance objectives as defined by materials department.
• Works closely with other departments to ensure efficient plant operations.
• Develops documentation to facilitate accurate Inventory counts including records of all audits,
counts

and adjustments. Analyzes Inventory records and data records to effectively manage inventory.
• Coordinates physical inventory audits and accounting
• Develops and effectively Implements warehouse and Inventory monitoring systems and procedures

Administrative Assistant for International Shipping
UPS-Pratt & Whitney - Londonderry. NH

July 2015 to 2016

• Extract various data arxl present the P&L results of the prior day to Mar«gement
• Provide periodic status reports to Supervisors
• Manage customer lr>quirles and develop a strong customer relationship
• Ensure urgent orders are top priority and are completed under current metric
• Various one-off projects for Upper Management
• Order supplies for the entire operation
• Meticulously review final export documents
• Prepare complex reports/presentations
• Analyze reports using various software packages and databases, Including MS Access
• Determine methods and procedures for completing complex tasks
• Provide advanced office support knowledge and skills
• Prepare and/or coordinate Information for Internal and external contacts

Crew Trainer

McDonalds - Manchester, NH

May 2009 to June 2015

• Trained new employees the procedures and guidelines laid out by management
• Worked as a member of a team to ensure quality and speed of service
• Communicated with customers wants and needs to provide the best experience possible



Tax Preparer
Contract Job

February 2015 to April 2015

Jackson Hewitt Tax Service

• Became knowledgeable in Tax Laws
• OulcWy and accurately computed taxes owed by following Tax Codes
• Advised against potential tax liabilities
• Uncovered potential deductions and credits
• Resolved customer complaints and clarified any concerns
• Paid close attention to all customer documents to ensure accuracy In the completion of taxes

Education

B.S. In Finance

Plymouth State University • Plymouth. NH
September 2010 to May 2014

Additional Information

• Strong analytical, oral/written communication, problem solving, basic research, and
time management skills
• Proficient In Excel and other Microsoft Office products (Word. Access. PowerPoint
and Outlook)

• Ability to utilize Excel and other software to create and review financial reports and
records

. Demonstrated ability to manage multiple tasks In a fast-paced environment under
minlimal supervision with a high attention to detail
• Exceptlortal Interpersonal skills
• Willingness to leam
• Experience working in group collaborations and being a leader In team activities
• Accurate and rapid data entry

I



CHRISTOPHER A. VOUGHTII

SUMMARY OP SKILLS

y Business owner for over 10 years and very fanuUar with all aspects of business
management including: Sales, risk maoagement, cost control and profit &. loss

•  Experience as a director, general manager, operations manager, home inspector, energy
auditor, property/facilities maintenance, contractor, and various aspects of quality control

•  Proficient with Windows operating systems, Microsoft OfDcc, TREAT energy auditing
software, HomeOauge home inspection software
Comfortable with computers, electronics, hand tools, power tools, various oiulti-mcten,
testing devices and diagnostic equipment

•  Lock-Out Specialist- including key cutting/duplicating, residential door lock
repair/replacement

CAREER EXPERIENCE

Director of HousiDg Rehabilitation and Energy Conservation O2/2019-Current
Community Action Program
Belkruip-Merrimack Counties Inc.

Munagc Uic Housing Rehabilitation and Energy Conservation Programs, including the
Weatbcrization Assistance Program, CORE energy programs and Lead Hazard Control
Program

•; Fiscal accountability, budget management, and scheduling
•  Responsible for the day-to-day operations, including a hands-on approach in training,

assisting and mentoring department employees
• Woridog closely with funding sources and various departments within The Agency to

ensure Program success and growth

Certified Building Analyst/Energy Auditor 1 l/2017-02/ZI)l9
Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.

•  BPI Certified Building Analyst Professional
y Successfully passed the Energy Auditor Pilot Program written exam
•• Responsible for a minimum of 120 energy audits per year and maintaining 40+ open

projects in progress
•  Educating clients about the program and its process, how their home operates as a

system, and how to conserve energy
•. Inspect all areas of the home to dctcnmne potential health and safety concerns, evaluate

the effectiveness and condition of existing Insulation and thermal boundaries
•• - Perform numerous technical tests regarding combustion appliance safety and cflficiency,

heating/cooling system distribution and diagnostics, mechanical ventilation, air leakage
and electrical appliance energy usage
Input the data collected during the audit into energy auditing software, generate
ipplicable reports, organize each projea and ensure all required paperwork Is complete

•  Determine a course of action for replacement, supplementation or improvement of the
homes energy related systems, safety devices and thermal envelope



•  Initiate a work order containing ail measures to be performed, assign to applicable
contractors and ensure the work is completed as ordered

• Coordinate closely and effectively with clients, contractors, utility/program personnel and
colleagues within the organization

State of New Hampshire Licensed Home Inspector 10/2016-Current
Owner/General Manager af Time's A Wasting Nome Inspection Services

•  State of New Hampshire Home Inspection License, American Society of Home
Inspectors (ASHl) Associate Member

•  Execute prc-listing end prc-closing residential home inspections, existing homeowner
general safety & maintenance inspeciicQS, well water and radon gas testing

• Generate comprehensive reports containing all observations, information, and images
gathered during the inspection

•  Coordinate directly with Clients, Realtors, Real Estate Agencies. Mortgage Specialists,
and various professionals in the residential borne buying & home maintenance field

Home, Facilities & Property Malntcnaocc/Repalr Services 06/2015-06^017
Owner/General Manager at Time's A Wasting Handyman Sen'ices

•  Various light-duty repairs, mointcnonoc serviooa, upkeep, and consultation catering
primarily to busy, unable, and/or inexperienced homeowners and small business owiws

•  Education and advisement to Clients of my recommendations in the areas of remodeling,
upgrading, repairing, and maintaining various areas and components of their homes and
small businesses

•  Produce accurate project cost estimates detailing all planning, materials, and timeline
while effectively communicating with the Client to ensure they fully comprehend the
entire project scope from start to finish

• Generate new clients and maintain Client loyalty through perfonnfng quality services and
my ability to communicate professionally and intclligcnlly

lodependent Carpet Contracfor/Iostaller 03/2008-02/2017
Sub-Contracted with Lowe's Nome Improvement Stores C/0 Paul S. Trajlineklll, Installs By
Paul LLC. (Cenified Carpet Installer)
• Optimized and maintained communication and relationships with store management,

associates, and customers during the initial consultation, measurement, purchasing, and
carpet installation processes

• Achieved weekly, monthly, and yearly scores above 95% in Professionalism and
Craftsmanship, consistently

• Received multiple "Gold" (100%) and "Silver" (95+%) end-of-yeor awards presented by
Lowe's to exceptional Sub-Contractors in each region



City Operation. Manner- , . ̂ , 09/1997^2/2008
Vanguard-Cv^R^qi^A.rNC (Alamo Rent A Card:Ndtiom^:GarR^
• Hired, direct^, s^^uled, meotored, and,wpp<)'r((^^^ cx«npt.& non-cxOTpt

employees working within the followrngjereas:
admiiustration. payroll, training, production, logistics, facilities, asset protection and cash
management, vehicle service and repair

• Managed the daily inventory of a peak rental fleet of over 1,200 vehicles
•  Increased sales, which b turn generated over $9,000,000 in annual revenue, eambg 34%

market share with 6 direct competitors b Manchester, NH
.  Initiated the creation of successful systems to interpret business reporting, trend analysis,

budget obligations, and financial data
•  Innovated demand forecasting, pricmg, logistics, inventory utilization, and «rttegic

planning practices ' .
•  Led the coordination of numerous projects bcluding a dual-brand consolidation

involving the conversion of a sbglc branded facility bto operating two separate brands,
computer opcretbg systems and clientele

P.niUigXTlON & CERTTPICAJIONS

•; Residential Energy Performance Association (REPA) Associate Member
.• Home Performance Coalition Conference <2019)
• hud/EPA Lead RRP Certified Renovator (2018)
• OSHA 30 Hour Outreach Training Program - ConstnjcliOQ (2018)
• NYSWDA Building Analyst Professional training course (2018)
•• Energy Out West Conference (2018)
•, ASHl Inspection World Conference Sc Convention (2017)
• ASHl Standards of Practice and Code of Ethics course (2016)

National HomclnspcctionExam(2016) .
Manchester Community College (2016) Certificate for American Society of Home .
Inspectors (ASHl) and Sutc of New Hampshire Home Inspection Course

• Licensed Maine State Motor Vehicle Inspection Technician (1998-2003)
•  Portland (Maine) Regional Vocational Technical Center (1996)

Diploma - Automotive Technology & Automotive Business Management
•  Deering High School • Diploma
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